Penn Farm – Miracle on Frenchtown Pike

Penn Farm is a rental property owned by the Trustees of New Castle Common

The miracle: like other Commons, its creation began 100 years before the revolutionary war, but it alone still exists today

Part 1: 

What IS a Common?

When did it become a Common?

Why was the Common formed?

How did it get created?

Why did the Trustees make farms out of the Common lands?

Part 2: How did it alone survive among the approximately 10 farms the Trustees owned?

 
What happened to the other 8 or 9 farms?

What could have happened to this land?


What did happen to the nearby Cranehook Common?

Part 1: 

What IS a Common?

(A ‘Common’ is defined as ‘Land or resources belonging to or affecting the whole of a community’.)


Small Commons still exist in many states, for example in New England, as the village green in the center of towns where churches and the town hall are located (like The Green in New Castle and Dover.  They were often created when the land was first laid out by settlers.

When did it become a Common?


There wasn’t an exact starting point.  There was land around here that was considered a Common during the Dutch period before the arrival of William Penn from England in 1682.  He confirmed this and had it surveyed in 1704.

What was this land like when it became a common?

Imagine this land as a tall dark forest of hardwood trees.  Maybe some Native American trails ran through it, certainly there was one close to the river.  We know of the trees since they were the corners in the survey of 1704: Spanish,  , and   oaks, hickory ..

We know of the presence of Native Americans and the fear of them.  They regularly entered Fort Casimir and New Amstel.  A regular method of sending an official letter to New Amsterdam (NY) in the 1660’s was to “send a native” who would run, swim and paddle the 120 miles in 6-10 days to NY, probably more or less via the same route as I-95 avoiding hostile tribes.  As for fear, there was a small Common at Cranehook 3 miles north of here in back of the 8 farm lots of former Swedish settlers. It was near Wilmington Ave. and Lambson Lane. Cranehook church was built there in the form of a “blockhouse” or fortified building with a projecting second story so the settlers could shoot down on the Indians if they attacked.

Why was the Common formed?
Initially the Common here was used as a source of wood and for grazing cattle.  Nobody was responsible for limiting cutting of wood or preventing encroachment of the land by neighboring landowners.   All the lots around the farm had already been allocated by the time of the 1704.  Owners included .. on the other side of the Kings Rode (rte 273).  Recognizing that the land was being despoiled and encroached, townspeople approached Penn’s descendents and asked that a governing board of citizens be created to oversee the land and use it for the benefit of the citizens of the town.  The Trustees of New Castle Common mbly?

Why did the Trustees make farms out of the Common lands?

The Trustees wanted cash, not lumber or farm produce, to use for their activities such as creating building the Town’s first school (the Academy), a place for fire equipment and meetings (the Town Hall) etc. They therefore divided the 1000 acres of land into about 10 farms and lots and leased them to tenants.  I say “about” since the number, size and use (farm vs <10 acre lots) varied with time.  Some of the tenants were wealthy town dwellers like John Crow who built the house on Penn Farm, and they subleased the property to people who actually farmed the land.  Initially the leases were for 30 (?20?) years, but that dropped down to only one year after some time since profits were much less than hoped for.

Where were the Common farms?
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The land and farms extended from current Wm. Penn High School at the edge of town out to the middle of the airport and over to Jefferson farms.  By the time of this 1894 map, they were assigned numbers and names starting with Jefferson farm in what is now (duh) Jefferson Farm, then Stockton, Oglethorpe, Central Hall, Model, Penn, Union, Bayard and Clayton.

We don’t know why these names were chosen.  

Richard Stockton was a signer of the Declaration of Independence from New Jersey.  Thomas Stockton was a New Castle resident and governor of Delaware.

James Oglethorpe was an English prison reformer who founded Georgia, the last of the 13 colonies partially with imprisoned debtors!  His connection to Delaware is not clear.  

The Bayard family in Delaware dates from the days of Peter Stuyvesant in the 1600’s and includes three U.S. Senators.

John Clayton was a U. S. senator from Delaware who lived at Buena Vista, just a few miles south on US 13.

Today the farm is the only vestige of the Common's agricultural past. Delaware Greenways, a 501(3)c non-profit, is Historic Penn Farm’s 22nd tenant and managing entity.

The Common is "unique in character, and almost without its counterpart in this or any other sister state and reflecting in our original settlers the ancient customs and habits of the land from which they came.'  (From archives of Trustees of New Castle Common)
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